
Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
1 

The meeting of the Community Development Authority of the City of Onalaska was called to 1 
order on Friday, March 27, 2015 at 12:10 p.m..  It was noted that the meeting had been 2 
announced and a notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Ald. Jim Bialecki, Ald. Jim Olson, 5 
Barry Blomquist, John Lyche, Mike Gargaro 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Land Use and Development Director Brea Grace, Mayor Joe Chilsen, Financial 8 
Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler 9 
 10 
Excused Absence:  Ann Brandau and Mark Hansen 11 
 12 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meetings: 13 
 14 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to approve the minutes from the previous 15 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 16 
 17 
On voice vote, motion carried. 18 
 19 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 20 
 21 
John called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that portion of the 22 
meeting. 23 
 24 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 25 
 26 
Item 4 – Review of 2014 Financials 27 
 28 
Fred noted the expenditures show a total of $57,706.23, while total revenue totaled $91,297.03.  29 
The net income for 2014 was $33,590.80. 30 
 31 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Barry, to accept the 2014 Financials. 32 
 33 
On voice vote, motion carried. 34 
 35 
Item 5 – Update on Badger-Coulee Transmission Line 36 
 37 
Brea noted the Public Service Commission met on March 26 and said its members went through 38 
the decision matrix point by point.  Brea said there were approximately 25 points, and the PSC 39 
chose the northern route for the Badger-Coulee Line.  Brea said the City of Onalaska’s citizens 40 
had impacted the decision, noting that PSC commissioner Mike Huebsch had mentioned the 41 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
2 

businesses Mayor Chilsen had spoken to that would be impacted by the line.  Brea said she 42 
believes the efforts of the CDA and the public had made a significant impact on the decision.  43 
Brea noted the PSC is looking at triple-circuiting on USH 53 from the Briggs Road substation for 44 
a mile segment through the Village of Holmen before continuing north.  Brea said it appears the 45 
PSC’s decision was unanimous and that the PSC’s staff will now write the orders.  The official 46 
decision ultimately will return to the board for a final motion. 47 
 48 
Brea said, “[This is] great news.  Mayor Chilsen said it well [Thursday] that we don’t want the 49 
line going through anyone’s backyard, so is there really a need for the line?  But we’re happy 50 
that it’s not coming through Onalaska.  We had a lot of developers who had spoken about whose 51 
property would be impacted, and they had put their plans on hold.  So it’s exciting that those can 52 
now proceed.” 53 
 54 
Mayor Chilsen commended the Planning Department, especially Brea and Planner/Zoning 55 
Inspector Katie Meyer, for their efforts in educating and motivating the city’s citizens to oppose 56 
the southern route.  Mayor Chilsen noted that 10 percent of the city’s population signed an 57 
opposition letter and again commended Brea and her staff. 58 
 59 
John commended Mayor Chilsen, the Planning Department and everyone involved in stating the 60 
city’s opposition to the southern route and said, “I think this is probably the most important thing 61 
the CDA has done, at least during my tenure, in jumping on board with the leadership that we 62 
saw.  I couldn’t be happier. … I don’t think there’s anything we could have done that’s more 63 
important to the long-term viability of the City of Onalaska.” 64 
 65 
Item 6 – Review and discussion of 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update, Chapter 7 – 66 
Economic Development 67 
 68 
Brea said she is seeking feedback from the CDA on the Economic Development chapter. 69 
 70 
Ald. Bialecki noted the Plan Commission had reviewed this document and had no questions. 71 
 72 
John asked Brea to state the chapter’s primary goals and objectives. 73 
 74 
Brea said the City of Onalaska is expected to experience a significant growth in population over 75 
the next 20 years and noted that the Long Range Planning Committee will work on the Land Use 76 
chapter in the coming months.  Brea said Chapter 7 identifies designated economic development 77 
sites; what tools are available to support economic development; and local plans and programs.  78 
Brea noted one of the objectives is to create an economic development plan for the City of 79 
Onalaska and said this is something that can be retained as a 10- to 20-year goal, or perhaps even 80 
shorter.  Brea noted there also are goals to foster medical, high-tech and clean manufacturing; 81 
promote tourism and ecotourism; work with the local educational system to develop vocational 82 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
3 

programs and address the needs of both existing employers and businesses targeted for 83 
recruitment; continue to implement the Great River Landing Plan and encourage redevelopment 84 
downtown; and also encourage home occupations, where appropriate. 85 
 86 
John asked for a definition of home occupations. 87 
 88 
Brea said the city’s Zoning Code has different tiers of regulation on home occupation and cited 89 
the example of a computer-oriented home occupation that does not require a permit.  Brea said a 90 
Conditional Use Permit is required once a business starts impacting a neighborhood with 91 
customers and deliveries.  Brea cited the example of a city landscaping company to which the 92 
city had issued the last CUP, noting the business has a home office and the employees meet there 93 
and travel together to a job.  Brea said the intention of the home occupation is to aid business 94 
startups.  Once a business grows, they are encouraged to relocate elsewhere. 95 
 96 
John said he believes one of the city’s strengths is that it has some zoning restrictions that are not 97 
overly restrictive.  John cited the example of Houston, Texas, which has several home 98 
occupations that “run rampant.”  John said he believes the city should exercise caution regarding 99 
home occupations. 100 
 101 
Brea said staff will modify that goal, stating she believes the city should encourage more long-102 
term investment in the commercial part of the community. 103 
 104 
John said that while he does not believe the city should necessarily try to thwart home 105 
occupations, it also should not encourage them, either. 106 
 107 
In response to a question by Barry, Brea said Short Elliott Hendrickson is writing the 108 
Comprehensive Plan for the city.  The Long Range Planning Committee is the steering 109 
committee for the project, and staff is facilitating discussion and taking the plan’s chapters to the 110 
city’s boards, committees and commissions. 111 
 112 
Mayor Chilsen asked if the chapter includes information regarding one of the objectives being a 113 
city-sponsored revolving loan fund. 114 
 115 
Brea said it could be added. 116 
 117 
Mayor Chilsen said such a fund could be germane for the CDA if it wants to establish such a 118 
fund as a goal going forward. 119 
 120 
John suggested developing a policy that provides the tools to promote business and economic 121 
development.  This policy could include a city-sponsored revolving loan fund. 122 
 123 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
4 

Mayor Chilsen noted the City of La Crosse had to “pull back” on a program that utilized funding 124 
for helping citizens paint and repair their houses due to legal issues and said the City of Onalaska 125 
must exercise caution in this area.  Mayor Chilsen said he believes the City of Onalaska would 126 
be within legal parameters if such a program involved a revolving loan fund. 127 
 128 
John said the city could notice an impact if, for example, it had $10,000 to loan and 10 129 
homeowners each received a $1,000 loan.  John also noted there are no references to the 130 
transportation system in Chapter 7. 131 
 132 
Brea said there is a separate chapter with separate goals for transportation, adding she believes 133 
there is a general goal pertaining to watching what transpires with the north-south corridor and 134 
ensuring that the city’s long-term transportation needs are met.  Brea also noted the funding gap 135 
with the gas tax and road maintenance issues is addressed.  Brea noted all the draft chapters can 136 
be found at cityofonalaska.com and said staff will welcome comments throughout the process.  137 
Once all the chapters have been examined by the city’s pertinent boards, commissions and 138 
committees, a public hearing will be held at a future Plan Commission meeting.  The Plan 139 
Commission would then make any necessary changes, vote on the Comprehensive Plan and sent 140 
it to the Common Council for final adoption.  Brea said a public meeting will be held before the 141 
public hearing, and the primary focus will be on the land use map. 142 
 143 
John asked if the city has the ability to impose an extra sales tax or gas tax. 144 
 145 
Brea said she believes the city would need statutory approval to do so. 146 
 147 
Fred said it would be possible to levy a city tax. 148 
 149 
Brea said she believes there is either a resort or a destination tax. 150 
 151 
Fred said such a tax exists in Wisconsin Dells and that the city once looked into implementing 152 
such a tax.  However, Fred said the city did not meet the qualifications for a resort tax. 153 
 154 
John said he believes the city needs to be looking into long-term needs regarding development 155 
and multimodal transportation.  John suggested that perhaps a gasoline tax would be a “less 156 
offensive tax” and said he is unsure if the city is in a position to do so.  John said the idea would 157 
not be to raise the overall tax burden, but to instead shift the tax burden. 158 
 159 
Ald. Bialecki said he believes the city has done a satisfactory job of maintaining its 160 
infrastructure. 161 
 162 
Fred noted there have discussions regarding eliminating personal property tax. 163 
 164 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
5 

Mayor Chilsen said doing so would have a negative effect on the city. 165 
 166 
John noted the city will need to provide a certain base level of services as well as a certain base 167 
level of capital improvements that will be required.  John suggested that the city should find out 168 
what its options are. 169 
 170 
Ald. Bialecki referred to TIF districts, noting that now a city may only utilize a certain 171 
percentage of that valuation for taxes. 172 
 173 
Mayor Chilsen said the state cannot reduce all taxes, noting that both tax cuts and a revenue limit 174 
are putting the city in a difficult position.  Mayor Chilsen also noted that costs are increasing and 175 
questioned where the funding will originate.  Mayor Chilsen said it is essential for the city to 176 
have a method with which to increase its revenue. 177 
 178 
Ald. Olson said it is essential that the city plan for future growth and income because it will be 179 
needed. 180 
 181 
Item 7 – Consideration of funding contribution to La Crosse County Micro Lending Fund 182 
 183 
Brea noted that last October Brian Fukuda had given a presentation to the CDA on the La Crosse 184 
County Micro Lending Fund.  Brea said Brian was seeking a $26,500 contribution from the City 185 
of Onalaska and noted she had contacted him Friday morning asking for an update.  Brea said 186 
Brian told her that he has not been actively working on this at the present time.  However, Brian 187 
said he will attempt to pull together commercial lenders and obtain feedback as far as what they 188 
think of the program.  Brea suggested that the CDA should wait until it learns what type of 189 
feedback the commercial lenders provide before deciding whether or not to make a financial 190 
commitment. 191 
 192 
Ald. Bialecki said delaying a decision would be a good idea and noted that there already is a 193 
significant amount of funding present.  Ald. Bialecki referred to communities participating in the 194 
Block Grant Program and noted these communities had millions of dollars at their disposal but 195 
could not utilize the money due to strict federal regulations.  Ald. Bialecki said he believes seven 196 
counties and 14 different municipalities placed all their Block Grant funding in one account.  197 
Ald. Bialecki said he would like to find out from Brian how successful this move has been. 198 
 199 
Mayor Chilsen and Brea both said the consolidation never occurred.  Brea added she believes the 200 
revolving loan fund is still a separate fund than the micro lending fund and said these dollars 201 
would have fewer restrictions.  Brea also suggested deferring this item to a future CDA meeting. 202 
 203 
 204 
 205 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 



Community Development Authority 
of the City of Onalaska 
Friday, March 27, 2015 
6 

Item 8 – Closed Session: 206 
 207 
To consider a motion to convene in Closed Session under Section 19.85(1)(e) of the Wisconsin 208 
Statutes for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the 209 
investing of public funds or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 210 
bargaining reasons require a closed session: 211 
 212 

• Intergovernmental Agreement regarding EagleCrest Bond Refunding 213 
• Discussion related to development and refinement of negotiating and development 214 

strategies as well as review of development proposals for TIF 4 District. 215 
 216 
If any action is required in Open Session, as the result of the Closed Session, the CDA Board 217 
will reconvene in Open Session to take the necessary action and/or continue on with the printed 218 
agenda. 219 
 220 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to convene in Closed Session. 221 
 222 
On roll call vote:  Ald. Jim Olson – aye, Ald. Jim Bialecki – aye, Barry Blomquist – aye, John 223 
Lyche – aye, Mike Gargaro – aye.  In Closed Session at 12:46 p.m. 224 
 225 
Motion by Barry, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn from closed session. 226 
 227 
On roll call vote:  Ald. Jim Olson – aye, Ald. Jim Bialecki – aye, Barry Blomquist – aye, John 228 
Lyche – aye, Mike Gargaro – aye.  Meeting adjourned at 1:50 p.m. 229 
 230 
 231 
 232 
Recorded by: 233 
 234 
Kirk Bey 235 

Reviewed 4/1/15 
 


